Village of Lemont
Planning and Zoning Commission
Specially Called Meeting of January 8, 2020

A specially called meeting of the Planning and AgnCommission for the Village of Lemont
was held at 6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, January 8, ib0®@ second floor Board Room of the
Village Hall, 418 Main Street, Lemont, lllinois.

CALL TO ORDER

A. Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Studebaker called the meeting to ordér3& p.m. He then led the Pledge
of Allegiance.

B. Verify Quorum

Upon roll call the following were:
Present: Carmody, Cunningham, McGleam, O’Connawl&k, Zolecki, Studebaker
Absent: None

Community Development Manager Mark Herman, ConsgllElanner Jamie Tate,
and Village Trustee Ron Stapleton were also present

C. Approval of Minutes — December 4, 2019 Meeting

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Zolecki to
approve the minutes from the December 4, 2019 aeguéeting with no changes. A
voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

CHAIRMAN’'S COMMENTS
Chairman Studebaker greeted the audience and dsk®gne was planning on

speaking in regards to the public hearing this awgeto please stand and raise his/her
right hand. He then administered the oath.

PUBLIC HEARING

A. 2020-02 1297 MCCARTHY ROAD MIXED USE PRELIMINARY
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT



Chairman Studebaker called for a motion to operpth#ic hearing for Case 2020-
02.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
open the public hearing for Case 2020-02. A veamie was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said the applisadP, Inc. who is represented by
Patrick Roche. They are requesting a Prelimindamried Unit Development (PUD)
to construct a mixed use building. The lot is ently vacant and is located at the
northwest corner of McCarthy Road and Walker. Téeyproposing to construct a
two-story mixed use building with masonry, woocasl aluminum windows with a
patio and outdoor space on the second story. itheéthe site is 1.91 acres. She
then stated the surrounding land uses around tpoped property. The
Comprehensive Plan shows it as Neighborhood Retail.

The first floor will have 6,000 square feet of pnelstaurant, 2,000 square feet for
office and retail, and 2,000 square feet for aemffafé which will have the proposed
drive-thru associated with it. The second stoityvave three apartment units which
will have 1-2 bedrooms. They range in size of @,8Quare feet to 1,600 square feet
with outdoor terraces. Residential units are tgihycnot allowed in the B-3 District
and therefore with this request is the PUD whicto iallow the residential
component. They are also requesting some furtteapeions with the PUD as well.

Mrs. Tate stated the proposed property used todaeveash and it has been vacant
for about 10 years. There is a concrete pad gmaains on the property, any and all
buildings have been demolished. There are twoqe®g access points existing on
the property that they are planning on keeping. 8¢eess points are off of Walker
Road and McCarthy Road. There is an existing peemsidewalk that circles the

site which is proposed to stay. There is somebbsked vegetation and trees that are
on the site. Some of it is overgrown but thera miffer that is proposed to remain.

The proposal general meets the intention of theictisn the Comprehensive Plan
with the exception of the residential componentregidential component on a
second story was something more contemplated iDtiventown District when it
comes to the Comprehensive Plan rather than iNillage’s commercial zones.
However, it would be a compliment to the adjacemhmercial uses by bringing
more residents to the Village and also allowingntiie use the existing retail that is
in the area and at this proposed project. Thel@esal units can help achieve some
of the home diversity goals of the Lemont 2030 RNéiie still meeting the
objectives and intentions of a commercial zonirsjratit.



Mrs. Tate said one thing staff looks at is the Raljectives in the UDO, but not all
objectives apply to every PUD. For this propoggiheof the eleven objectives
applied. One objective is to stimulate creativprapches to the residential,
commercial and industrial development of land. Preposed PUD has a mix of
residential and commercial uses on a single-lotiamshe mixed use building. This
is not as common in this area of the Village otraditional suburban commercial
corridors. It is a creative approach and promai@kability and fewer trips by
automobile. It could provide housing for thoset thark in the area.

Another objective is the proposed plan is presegriiie woodland buffer currently in
place along the northern and eastern portionseo$ite. Even though public open
space is not being provided onsite, each unithalle an outdoor terrace associated
with its space. There is also Covington North RHaclated approximately a quarter of
a mile away and accessible by sidewalk the entiger One objective is to decrease
trip lengths and increase the use of modes ofpatetion other than a private
vehicle. The entire site is surrounded by an exjssidewalk that makes connections
to other pathways throughout the Village. Theeesaveral residential subdivisions
in close proximity that can safely and efficiertlycess the proposed commercial use
simply by walking or cycling. These are just a fegy objectives and the remaining
objectives can be found in staff's packet.

Mrs. Tate said the proposal should be compatibil thie existing land uses as it is a
combination of both commercial and residential. i/the commercial uses are
allowed by right in the B-3 district the outdoonitig patio and drive-thru are a
special use and with the subject property’s proina residential areas it should be
a consideration within the request for its spegsd. Staff has asked for further
clarification regarding the (possible) right-intigout access point change from
McCarthy Road. At that entranceway the site iswag counterclockwise and it
may be confusing and conflicting to keep a fullegspoint.

The plan did go before the Technical Review ConmerifffRC) on October 30, 2019
with a slightly different site plan. After the niewy, the applicant did adjust the
proposal to accommodate several comments. Statidiees] for clarification on
parking stall dimensions, trash enclosure materiatsrior landscaping quantities,
signage details and other elevation clarificatiombe Village Engineer is reviewing
the proposal and gave some preliminary commentslyrasking about stormwater
detention volumes and how they are computed foptbposal. He also had some
guestions in regards to the underground storage. Village Arborist has also
reviewed the plan and is asking for the compositibtine woodland trees to be
preserved and saved. He is also asking how the toeated in the bio-swale are
going to be saved. The Fire Department reviewedgtan and had no major
concerns.

Mrs. Tate stated there are some departures fromotieg standards that are
requested in the PUD. The first is to allow theidential in the B-3 Zoning District
which has been discussed. There is a portionegp#nking lot and trash enclosure



that encroach into the rear setback. The encroachi® minor and there is existing
vegetation and trees in this area that will be daared enhanced to help minimize the
proposed encroachment. There are no 12 foot ti@msgards which is required when
commercial districts are adjacent to residentidlis is in addition to the required
setbacks. The size of the building and the amotiparking with the required
setbacks does not allow for an additional 12 feet.

Another departure is the off-street parking requeet calls for 63 stalls and they are
proposing 55 parking stalls. Due to the proposaidpa mixed use there is a leniency
in the code that shared parking and collective ipgregreements may apply. The
coffee and café will most likely be busier in thenming while the proposed pub will
have more patrons in the late afternoon and eveniing office/retail will require

less parking than the other two uses. The resaerarking will require five stalls.
Each PUD with a residential component should condiat least 15% open space.
The applicant is proposing no open space on the Sihis open space requirement is
generally meant for residential subdivisions. Tgrngposal is more similar to a mixed
use in the Downtown District and this open spaggiirement is not applicable to the
Downtown District. Lastly, the exterior walls foew construction must consist of
face brick of clay or native stone or fiber cemieoérd. The applicant is proposing a
material of thermally modified wood cladding. Tdhesign of the building is more of
a modern design with contemporary building matsyiab it is common to see this
type of material.

Mrs. Tate said the special use is for the driveitlgh for the café/coffee shop and the
outdoor patio for the pub/restaurant. There arstsindards for the special use and
staff finds that they adequately meet them. Theeemore clarification
recommendations that has been stated in the conletentthat is provided. In
regards to the drive- through, due to the proximityhe residential zoned land on the
norther and western property line, the hours ofaipen should be determined to
make sure it is not operating in off hours to drany adjacent residents. Signage
should also be placed about the site to providea and safe circulation. There
should be consideration for a fence or berm at l@ashe east side of the drive-
through to block light and sound from the orderrdoalhe applicant did meet the
other regulations surrounding the drive-througthmUDO. Staff recommend
approval of the special use for the drive-througgihiwwthe PUD as long as the
conditions are clarified.

The standards are the same for outdoor dining atid ppecial use. It is desirable to
have outdoor dining associated with restaurantoandise. The Village has seen
several cases of outdoor dining uses in the pagile@f years. The location of the
patio on the site is best as its farthest fromrasydentially zoned land or any
existing homes. The noise that would be generfabed the patio will compete with
the existing road noise and likely travel away frihm site. Planters should be
scattered throughout the patio to account for fatiod landscaping requirements
that would typically apply in this area without tpatio feature. The hours of



operation for the outdoor dining and drinking paimuld be discussed to determine
what is appropriate for this location.

Mrs. Tate stated in conclusion, the proposal i@ with many goals and objectives
in the Comprehensive Plan. The site has been vacdmnunderutilized for many
years and the proposal will provide vibrancy to ¢bener and the opportunity for an
increased tax base. The incorporation of resideintio a primarily commercial
corridor will allow for new residents to live withwalking distance to restaurants,
retall, offices and parks, therefore reducing velaictrips and encouraging other
modes of transportation. The site appears weigded within most of the
parameters of the UDO and the uses and buildingldhi®e a complementary
addition to this corner. Staff is recommendingrappl of the Preliminary PUD with
conditions that are listed in staff's report.

Chairman Studebaker asked if any of the Commisssolmed any questions for staff.
Commissioner McGleam asked who had jurisdictiorr d¥eCarthy Road.

Mrs. Tate said it is the lllinois Department of msportation (IDOT). As long as they
are not touching the access they will not haveetoagpermit. Staff will clarify this
before they come back for final approval.

Commissioner Pawlak asked if staff can explainriinaber of parking spaces
needed.

Mrs. Tate said the code has a list of uses thathgwe to have a certain square
footage for gross floor area. For the pub/restawau will need one parking space
for every 150 square feet of gross floor areahadwould require 40 stalls. For the
retail/office it is one parking space for every Zfuare feet of gross floor area, so
that would require eight stalls. The coffee anfié @ea would require one parking
space for every 200 square feet, which requirestdl® and then the residential
above would be five parking spaces. A total foboathem is 63 parking spaces. In
the off-street parking section it does talk abouatiged use situation. The
office/retail and the café will most likely not riea lot or any at night and the
pub/restaurant most likely will not be as busy dgrihe day.

Commissioner McGleam asked if there has been awyssion regarding hours of
operation with the applicant or at the TRC meeting.

Mr. Herman stated it has not been mentioned awadstnot brought up at the TRC
meeting. There was more focus on the residert@eand the outdoor dining.
Also, with the holidays, there was a delay on ggtsome of the information
together.

Chairman Studebaker asked what is the actual distafwhat is being proposed
from the property line.



Mrs. Tate said any non-residential adjacent tesaleatial must have the required
setbacks, 25 feet, and then the additional 12 f8etthe applicant is not showing any
transition yard.

Chairman Studebaker asked if they are requestipgamances for signage.

Mrs. Tate stated they are not including it in théCPso as of right now there are no
variances.

Chairman Studebaker asked about the “cladding” nahte

Mrs. Tate said the building will mostly be masortoyf there are areas where they
use wood cladding.

Commissioner McGleam asked since they are not girayithe transition yard what
type of materials are they planning in lieu of nweting that requirement or what is
their plan for a buffer.

Mrs. Tate stated they are planning on keeping xisieg buffer, but the arborist
wants to know the composition. They will be addiodghat buffer. She showed on
the overhead the landscape plan. The arboriststarglso know by keeping these
trees how it will work with the bio-swale.

Commissioner Cunningham asked if there were artyicegns proposed out of
either of the access drives for the carwash.

Mrs. Tate said they were full access drives.

Chairman Studebaker asked if there were any fugtestions for staff. None
responded. He then asked for the applicant to domerd to make a presentation.

Applicant Presentation

Molly Roche stated her and husband had purchaseprtiposed property. They are
hoping to enhance the community of Lemont alondp witing their business a place
to reside. They currently own and operate Hamt&ub which is located on
McCarthy Road already. Their business continuegaa and they need more space
to service their customers. She will now haverthethitect come up and answer any
guestions.

Patrick Callaghan, Studio GC Architecture, saidf stial a thorough presentation this
evening. They did receive the comment lettersthay are working through them.
They are planning on using the current ingressasgpeints and they are not planning
on widening them. They are working on the perrmdlienges from any work in the
ROW on McCarthy road. They realize that they nieeidcrease the amount of the



underground storage as a result of the open cucttieently exists. The intention is

to use area under the driveway for that purposeedards to the landscape plan, they
are hoping to keep as much foliage and trees ashpp@snd just enhance any gaps or
areas with new vegetation. They do recognizettigae are some challenges with the
bio-swale, but plan on getting those resolved.

Mr. Callaghan stated they plan to mitigate or egkahe trash enclosure or any
fencing to the west or north property lines. Theyuld not be able to provide the
amount of parking that they have if they are regphito provide the additional 12 feet.
With the McCarthy road entrance point they arenigyio provide an on-site
circulation that is logical particularly for theigg-through. It is a counterclockwise
direction and they were providing a surface patiithey did not want to trap
someone and force them to get back onto McCarttadRd hey are still making
adjustments to the plan. They will need to inceghe water service to the property.
They will have to do some directional boring unckti the roadway there, so they
will be engaging IDOT at some point. In regardgh® hours of operation, his client
is not going to change the hours of the current pubis willing to talk with the
Village about any restrictions for the drive-thrbuy the pub.

Chairman Studebaker asked what are the currens ladwperation.

Mrs. Roche said on Sunday, Monday and Tuesdaylit s.m. to midnight,
Wednesday and Thursday 11 a.m. to 1 a.m., andyFaida& Saturday 11 a.m. to 3
a.m.

Commissioner McGleam asked if they currently haattgpspace and if so do the
same hours apply for the patio.

Mrs. Roche stated they do have a patio and thetharsame hours.

Commissioner Zolecki asked if they had tenantglimg for the residential and the
café.

Mrs. Roche said they do not have any tenants lipedurrently. The anchor tenant
will be the business that they own and operatee cdifee section they are hoping to
attract a coffee shop of some sort, but do not lasigned lease at this time. For the
residential, they are hoping to attract some yqumagessionals that might not be
ready to purchase their first home and they doaittvo live in the downtown area or
might need access to Route 83.

Commissioner Zolecki asked if they are okay witkigeated stalls for the residents.

Mr. Callaghan stated that was always their plahtheey had not picked which spaces
at this time.



Commissioner Cunningham asked if this propertymditihave existing access points,
do they feel the access points are at the safestidm.

Mr. Callaghan said he is not sure he could defity safety. They can go back and
look at accident reports when the carwash waslim.does not see there being a mad
rush that overload these access points. The WRlkad location is what he would
call design standard at the midblock. The McCaRbwd is a little close to the
intersection. Their hope is to not to have to aati IDOT.

Commissioner Cunningham stated he is concernedhéatccess point is a little
close to that intersection and feels that thereilshioe more of a buffer. He would
like to see it moved further to the west.

Commissioner McGleam asked if a traffic study wecpuired.

Mrs. Tate said it was not.

Commissioner McGleam asked what is the threshaldrie to be provided.

Mr. Herman stated they have not been asking fantbhe PUD’s but if the Planning
and Zoning Commission or the Village Board wantsde one then they would be
required to provide one.

Trustee Stapleton asked if the applicant can explke wood cladding.

Mr. Callaghan said most zoning codes have not daygko building technology. It
is a wood veneer surface that is applied to a npetiaél. It is thermally applied
because it is bonded. It has the appearance af Wwom any distance but when you
tap it has the maintainability of metal.

Trustee Stapleton stated in one of the rendertrgfsowed a terrace over part of the
downstairs and he wondered if that is still there.

Mr. Callaghan said the upper portion above theidbbike an outdoor terrace for the
residents.

Trustee Stapleton asked how the hot station waggoibe vented when it is directly
underneath one of the living rooms.

Mr. Callaghan said it is going to be a horizontiattarge.

Trustee Stapleton stated when the carwash wasitheas just a stop sign at that
intersection. Now there is a traffic signal there.

Chairman Studebaker said it would be nice to hasengultant take a look at this.



Commissioner McGleam stated there have been adeent proposals regarding
outdoor patios that have more restrictive houra thihat the applicant has at their
current location. He asked if they are open torfitlat are more appropriate to a
development that is located next to a resident@perty.

Mrs. Roche said they are open to that discussidey placed the patio in a position
that would be further away from the residentiabaaed give a buffer from the noise.

Chairman Studebaker asked if there were any fughestions from the Commission.
None responded. He then asked if there was angahe audience that wanted to
speak in regards to this public hearing.

Public Comment

Milda Tallat-Kelpsa stated she lives next to thepmsed site. She and her husband
are concerned about the noise and the run-off thwatio property. They would also
like to know what the buffer is going to consist dihe trees in the current buffer
keep falling down so she is not sure what they lallable to save there. They would
like to see a privacy fence put up to prevent peapld trash from coming into their
yard and stop any headlights shining into theirseou

Mr. Gottardo said he is north and east of thisgmbgown Walker Road. When the
carwash was in operation there was a lot lesgdraiffd the hours of operation ended
at 10 p.m. The pub is going to 3 a.m. on some.d&ysh the exit on Walker Road
there is going to be more traffic headed northbouhke Village approved a zip line
establishment that will also have liquor at theeoténd of Walker Road. It is going
to increase the number of intoxicated people gdmgn Walker Road which is all
residential. He does not know why they would conilate zoning deviations.
Residential is not allowed in B-3 zoning. He asKedwas ever allowed elsewhere
in the Village.

Mrs. Tate stated it is in the downtown district.

Mr. Herman said besides the downtown the only obimexs he found were Franciscan
Village and Lithuanian World Center. He understatitht these are different but
they do have a mixed use in them.

Mr. Gottardo stated if the building was smallemthiaey would not have to encroach
into the neighbor’s yard. The PUD requires opeacspand they are also not
providing this.

Gary Kelso said he lives north of the proposals ¢tincern is the noise with the
outdoor dining and recreation area and the fadtitlecan go as late as 3 a.m. People
that are consuming alcohol are generally not thetegst people. He would like to see
some type of noise barrier if this goes through.



Tiffany Lutz stated she lives on the corner of Apphd Walker. She understands
that the applicant is proposing office space betdfiice spaces that are right across
the street have been vacant since 2012. She dskede will be music outside at
night on the outdoor patio. It was already mergdabout the other business being
on the other end of Walker. The speed limit isth on Walker and both of these
businesses will be serving alcohol. There arelfasnand children that cross this
street and there are several dips in the road.ré&tomed out to the Township and was
told that Cook County owns that area. She hopa® twill be some way to lower

that speed limit in that area.

Dottie Gottardo said she wants to remind everybaethere is no police presence on
Walker Road because where they are located it ismartorporated area. She is
concerned that people who have been drinking areggo be flying down that road
knowing that there is no police presence. WalkeadRhas been growing with
homes. Back in the day there was a lot of opeth éard it made sense to have that
road at 40 mph, but now there are several chilthmanlive in the area. She is
concerned also with the amount of traffic that éhbgsinesses are going to generate.
This proposal is going to generate a lot of noigé the outdoor dining, the drive-
through speaker, outdoor music, and the residdatgea

Mrs. Roche stated they will not be having any liwesic. They do have a juke box
and speakers indoors. Their speakers do run otgdoowever if they are going to
be amending those business hours then those speaeld be amended also for the
outdoor patio. Inregards to a buffer and theedisey are more than happy to
entertain a fence on that portion of the property.

Chairman Studebaker asked if there was anyondretbe audience that wanted to
speak in regards to this public hearing. Noneardpd. He then called for a motion
to close the public hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byniissioner Zolecki to close
the public hearing for Case 2020-02. A voice woés taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion

Commissioner McGleam stated they need to disceshdbrs of operation for the
drive-through and the outdoor patio. His opinistthat they can be different than the
business hours for the business, which has beenaonther developments.

Chairman Studebaker said he would like to seevagyifence on the property line to
the north.

10



Commissioner Pawlak stated there is a lot of congeregards to traffic and the
entrances so he thinks a traffic study needs tiobe.

Commissioner Zolecki said he struggles with th#ficrgtudy because it was never
requested of them. If they request it now it calddhy the project because they
would have to come back before the Commissionwblald like to see a condition
that they need to provide one to staff to be reg@and then presented at Final. He
asked the Chairman if in regards to the privacthéonorth was he looking for
something in particular or just something eitherdsaape or softscape to block
headlight and again it can be reviewed by staff.

Commissioner McGleam stated he feels a fence salvesnber of issues. There
were concerns about people migrating, headlights garbage. He feels with a
softscape approach some of these things wouldenptdwvented.

Commissioner Zolecki said he would hate to dictamething specific if there is
another way with a mixture of both. He would httédave an eyesore of a big tall
fence when there might be a better solution.

Commissioner McGleam stated they can put it ineodbintext of a mitigation
measure.

Chairman Studebaker asked in regards to the houthd outdoor patio is there a
business that has it that they could mirror this to

Mr. Herman said the Quarry Pub came before the Gesiom recently. It was
approved for no live outdoor entertainment afteal. and no amplified
entertainment. With the Quarry Pub proposal th®psiin the front of the building
and the residents are behind the building, so @ildibg should block out some of the
noise.

Commissioner Zolecki stated he feels Quarry Pubgeod example. He would like
to also add that the patio was a new use for QURuby This proposal is for an
established business in Lemont which has showrtliegtare good neighbors. He
feels that midnight is well in line for the outdqmatio.

Mr. Herman said in reference to the business, dingliion could be that the outdoor
dining special use is solely to the existing tenaky future tenants that would
occupying that space and want to use the outdoarglarea would need to come in
and apply for a new special use.

Commissioner Zolecki stated it needs to be stdtadit is for piped music and no
live entertainment.

11



Commissioner McGleam asked if they need to addheskours of operation for the
drive-through. He is not concerned because nasep are not opened past
midnight.

Commissioner Zolecki said most issues with coffesps are traffic concerns and not
with the speaker for drive-through.

Chairman Studebaker asked if there were any fudbemments or questions from the
Commission. None responded. He then called faotion for recommendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner Cunningham made a motion, secondébhymissioner Pawlak to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appaivCase 2020-02 with
staff's recommendations listed in staff's reportpages 9 and 10 and with following
additional conditions:

1. Provide a sight line buffer with serious mitigatimeasures between the business
and residential properties that address headlglfiteng on residential properties,
and mitigate the transfer of customers and trastn the proposed site to the
residential properties.

2. The outdoor patio hours of operation are definatlagreed to be in line with
other current businesses in the Village.

3. A traffic study should be considered especiallyagards to egress onto
McCarthy Road.

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: Cunningham, Pawlak, Carmody, McGleam, Zgl€zkConnor, Studebaker

Nays: None

Motion passed

Findings of Fact

Commissioner Cunningham made a motion, secondé&bhymissioner Carmody to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 2020-02 as prepared
by staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

ACTION ITEMS
None

GENERAL DISCUSSION

12



VI.

VII.

Commissioner McGleam said there has always be@baté in regards to traffic
studies for many years. He recommends they comvathpa threshold that would
trigger whether they need one or not.

Commissioner Zolecki stated requiring a trafficdstis only protecting the Village.

Discussion continued as to whether a traffic stisdequired and who determines the
requirement.

Commissioner Zolecki said in the Lemont Plaza téwkipg along State Street there
are no curbs there or wheels stops. He askedfifcsiuld look to see if there is a
requirement in the ordinance or a code statingithatrequired.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

None

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Studebaker called for a motion to adjdhenmeeting.

Commissioner Carmody made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Cunningham to
adjourn the meeting. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None
Motion passed

Minutes prepared by Peggy Halper

13



